
Board of Commissioners 
606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 

Roseau, MN 56751 
Phone:  218-463-4248 

Fax:  218-463-3252 

County Coordinator’s Office e-mail address: joleen.kezar@co.roseau.mn.us, Roseau County Home Page Address:  http://www.co.roseau.mn.us/ 

District 1, John Horner - District 2, Jack Swanson, Chair 
District 3, Roger Falk, Vice-Chair - District 4, Russell Walker - District 5, Daryl Wicklund 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Board of Commissioners of Roseau County will meet in session on May 14, 2019, at 8:30 a.m., in the 
Roseau County Courthouse, Room 110, Roseau, MN, at which time the following matters will come before the Board: 

8:30 Call to Order 
1. Presentation of Colors
2. Approve Agenda
3. Comments and Announcements
4. Approve Bills

8:35 Delegations/Board Appointments/Public Comments* 
1. Myles Hogenson – Roseau County Trailblazers Annual Review

8:50 Consent Agenda 
1. April 23, 2019 Board Proceedings
2. Roseau County Trailblazers – 4th Benchmark

8:55 Department Reports 
1. Highway

a. Heavy Equipment Operator Hire
b. Bridge Bonding Grant Resolution
c. Pay Grade Revision(s)
d. County Engineer Contract

2. Coordinator
a. Pay Grade Revision

9:25 Committee Reports 

9:30 County Board Items 
1. NW Regional Transportation Coordination Council Appointment
2. CR139 Culvert – “Findings and Order” Resolution
3. Commissioner Committee Reports

10:15 Unfinished Business 

10:15 Adjourn 

*Limited to five minutes

mailto:joleen.kezar@co.roseau.mn.us
http://co.roseau.mn.us/


Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  Board Appointment 1 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Roseau County Trailblazers 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Roseau County Trailblazers Annual Review 

Presenter:  Myles Hogenson 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☒ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Myles will be presenting the Trailblazer’s Annual Review, and will be requesting Board review and approval of their 
2019-2020 Grant-In-Aid application. 

Background: 
The Board approved a Resolution of Support for this application at the April 23, 2019 Regular Board meeting, 
(attached). 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☒ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 
 

 



















 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Roseau County 

Request for Board Action 

 

Agenda Item #:  Consent 1 
(for office use only) 

Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department: Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
April 23, 2019 Board Proceedings 

Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

□ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Review and approve the April 23, 2019 Board Proceedings. 

Background: 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached □ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

□ Delegations ☒ Consent Agenda 

□ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 

□ County Board Items ☐ Other 

 



 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ROSEAU COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
April 23, 2019 

 
The Board of Commissioners of Roseau County, Minnesota met in the Courthouse in the City 

of Roseau, Minnesota on Tuesday, April 23, 2019. 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
 The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Board Chair Jack Swanson. The Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. Commissioners present were Roger Falk, John Horner, Jack Swanson, 
Russell Walker and Daryl Wicklund.  Others present were Martie Monsrud, Jeff Pelowski, Joleen 
Kezar, Brian Ketring, Kristy Kjos, Dave Anderson, and Ben Johnston. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
  

Added to County Board Items:  Update on the Magnusson Case; and a Resolution of 
Support for the de-listing of the gray wolf.   A motion to approve the amended Agenda was made by 
Commissioner Walker, seconded by Commissioner Wicklund, and carried unanimously. 
 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  
 Commissioner Swanson provided handouts regarding the Minnesota gas tax.  Coordinator 
Pelowski inquired about the Northwest Regional Transportation Coordination Council Advisory 
Board.  He had talked with Troy Schroeder from the Council to let him know that Glenda Phillipe 
had volunteered to remain on the Advisory Board but had not been officially appointed by the 
Roseau County Board.  This committee appointment will be added to the next County Board 
Agenda for consideration.       
 
APPROVE BILLS 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Wicklund, seconded by Commissioner Horner, and 

carried unanimously to approve the payment of the following warrants: 
 
Warrants Approved For Payment 4/11/2019 (Warrant # 140143-140155) 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 CENTURYLINK  2,868.91 
 MN DEPT OF FINANCE -TREAS  2,079.00 
 ROSEAU CITY  12,383.09 
 10 Payments less than 2,000.00  6,416.41 

Final Total:  23,747.41 
 

Warrants Approved For Payment 4/18/2019 (Warrant # 140156-140170) 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 CO-OP SERVICE INC  2,040.34 
 DEPT OF NATURAL RESOURCES  2,000.00 
 ROSEAU CO TRAILBLAZERS  33,930.39 
 12 Payments less than 2,000.00  5,343.93 

Final Total:  43,314.66 
 

Warrants Approved On 4/23/2019 For Payment 4/26/2019 (Warrant # 140171-140245) 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 EMERGITECH LLC  9,743.71 
 EVCO PETROLEUM PRODUCTS INC  2,073.25 
 FARMERS UNION OIL CO-WARROAD  6,734.83 



 
 GCR TIRES & SERVICE  6,689.52 
 IMPACT  4,559.13 
 JOHNSON CONTROLS  3,832.20 
 LIFECARE MEDICAL CENTER  3,943.96 
 LIFECARE MEDICAL CENTER-HOME HEALTH 2,190.85 
 MATTSON PHARMACY INC  2,026.04 
 MN COUNTIES COMPUTER COOP  10,985.76 
 MSOP-MN SEX OFFENDER PROGRAM-D 4,625.20 
 NORTHERN RESOURCES COOPERATIVE  9,470.70 
 REGENTS OF U OF MINNESOTA  18,744.99 
 RINKE-NOONAN LAW FIRM  2,354.50 
 ROSEAU CO COOP ASSN  9,107.36 
 ROSEAU CO HWY DEPT  11,088.75 
 ROSEAU CO TREASURER  12,817.54 
 ROSEAU DIESEL SERVICE INC  2,731.10 
 SUMMIT FOOD SERVICE-DBA  14,682.77 
 UNIVERSITY OF NORTH DAKOTA  3,092.65 
 55 Payments less than 2,000.00  16,780.11 

Final Total:  158,274.92 
 

 In addition, the Board approved a forthwith payment in the amount of $7,783.37 to Rupp, 
Anderson, Squires, & Waldspurger for legal fees incurred for the Magnusson case. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by Commissioner Falk, seconded by 
Commissioner Walker, and carried unanimously. The Board, by adoption of its Consent Agenda, 
approved the April 9, 2019, Board Proceedings; approved the Roseau County Trailblazers 
Resolution of Support for their FY2019 Grant-in-Aid application; and, approved creating the Social 
Services Family-Based Services Provider position, authorizing submittal of the resulting job 
description to MRA for review/rating, and advertising for hire to fill this new position. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
Highway 
 
CSAH 9 Construction Project - Contract 
 
 Engineer Ketring stated that three bids were received for this project.  Knife River 
Construction provided the lowest bid at $4,682,677.46.  The 7.25 mile project is scheduled to start 
in mid-June and will be completed this year.  A motion to authorize entering into contract with Knife 
River Construction was made by Commissioner Walker, seconded by Commissioner Falk, and 
carried unanimously.  
 
COUNTY BOARD ITEMS 
 
Update on the Magnusson Lawsuit 
 
 Coordinator Pelowski distributed an update from Attorney Scott Anderson and provided a 
summary of the handout. There was no action taken. 
 
De-Listing of the Gray Wolf 
 



 
 Commissioner Walker requested a Board Resolution of Support on the de-listing of the gray 
wolf.  Following discussion, a motion was made by Commissioner Walker, seconded by 
Commissioner Wicklund, and carried unanimously to approve the following Resolution: 
 

2019-04-05 
 RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE DE-LISTING OF THE GRAY WOLF: 

 

WHEREAS, the existing gray wolf population in Minnesota has significantly exceeded the “ideal” 
number of wolves as established by the MnDNR; 
 
WHEREAS, the de-listing of the gray wolf is a necessity in Roseau County.  Not only does there 
need to be a trapping and hunting season, but residents need to be given the right to protect 
their yards, poultry, and livestock.  The loss of livestock and turkeys over the past years have 
been devastating.  The wolves have no fear of people.  They come right into farm yards and kill 
pets.  At this time, despite MN.Statute 97B.645, some residents of Roseau County that have 
tried to protect their livestock with firearms, have been charged and fined.  The government 
programs that reimburse for losses of livestock are poor at best.  If a rancher can’t find a calf or 
turkey the wolves drag into the woods, there is no reimbursement of loss.  If they raise breeding 
stock, the value that fits their loss will not be paid by the government either. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Roseau County Board of Commissioners hereby 
supports the de-listing of the gray wolf. 
 
Commissioner Committee Reports (April 9 – April 23, 2019)  
 
 Commissioner Falk reported on the following committee(s): Highway Committee 
Meeting; Social Services Board Meeting; MnDNR Commissioner Meeting; Northwest 
Community Action Meeting. 
 
 Commissioner Horner reported on the following committee(s):  Highway Committee 
Meeting; Lake Township Meeting; Warroad City Council Meeting. 
 
 Commissioner Swanson reported on the following committee(s):  Highway Committee 
Meeting; Roseau School Board Meetings; Jadis Township Board Meeting; NACO Community, 
Economic, Workforce Development Teleconference; Northwest Minnesota Housing and 
Redevelopment Authority Meeting; Statewide Emergency Communications Board Finance 
Committee Teleconference; Team EPIC Meeting; Social Services Board Meeting; MnDNR 
Commissioner Meeting; Representative Dan Fabian/Senator Mark Johnson Town Hall Meeting; 
Association of Minnesota Counties Board of Directors Meeting .   
 
 Commissioner Walker reported on the following committee(s):  Highway Committee 
Meeting; Social Services Board Meeting; MRC Board Meeting; MnDNR Commissioner Meeting.  
 
 Commissioner Wicklund reported on the following committee(s):  Highway Committee 
Meeting; Social Services Board Meeting; MnDNR Commissioner Meeting; Historical Society 
Meeting; Badger City Council Meeting. 
 
 Upon motion carried, the Board adjourned the meeting at 9:30 a.m. The next Regular 
meeting of the Board is scheduled for Tuesday, May 14, 2019 at 8:30 a.m.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
Attest: Date:   
 
    
Jeff Pelowski, County Coordinator Jack Swanson, Chair 
Roseau County, Minnesota  Board of County Commissioners 
 Roseau County, Minnesota 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  Consent 2 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Roseau County Trailblazers 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Roseau County Trailblazers – 4th Benchmark 

Presenter:  Myles Hogenson 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Requesting Board approval of the Roseau County Trailblazers 4th Benchmark payment. 

Background: 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 
 

 





Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  Department Reports 1a 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Highway 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Heavy Equipment Operator Hire 

Presenter:  Brian Ketring 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Requesting approval to hire Nathaniel Sorrels for this position. Upon approval, his start date would be May 28, 
2019, at a starting wage of $20.03/hour, (Grade 5, Step A). 

Background: 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☒ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 
 

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  Department Reports 1b 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Highway 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Bridge Bonding Grant Resolution 

Presenter:  Brian Ketring 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Requesting approval of the attached Resolution accepting Minnesota State Transportation funding, in the amount 
of $74,679.50, for the construction of Bridge No.68J50. The bridge is located on CSAH 9 at the County Line. 

Background: 
The County applied for State grant funding for the replacement of this bridge as a part of the CSAH 9 
reconstruction project. The State has awarded grant funding for 50% of the cost of construction with the remaining 
funds coming from the County’s State Gas Tax allotment. 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☒ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 
 

 



 
Board of Commissioners 

606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 
Roseau, MN 56751 

Phone:  218-463-4248 
Fax:  218-463-3252 

 

District 1, John Horner - District 2, Jack Swanson, Chair 
District 3, Roger Falk, Vice-Chair - District 4, Russell Walker - District 5, Daryl Wicklund 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 A motion was made by Commissioner XXXXX, seconded by Commissioner XXXXX, and 
carried unanimously to adopt the following Resolution: 
   
2019-05-01 
 

RESOLUTION 
For Grant Agreement to State Transportation Fund  

(Local Bridge Replacement Program)  
Grant Terms and Conditions (MnDOT Contract #: 1033325) 

SAP 068-609-020 
May 14, 2019 

 
WHEREAS,  Roseau County has applied to the Commissioner of Transportation for a grant 
from the Minnesota State Transportation Fund for construction of Bridge No. 68J50; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Transportation has given notice that funding for this project is 
available; and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of the grant has been determined to be $74,679.50 by reason of the 
lowest responsible bid; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that Roseau County does hereby agree to the terms and 
conditions of the grant consistent with Minnesota Statutes, section 174.50, and will pay any 
additional amount by which the cost exceeds the estimate, and will return to the Minnesota State 
Transportation Fund any amount appropriated for the bridge but not required.  The proper county 
officers are authorized to execute a grant agreement and any amendments thereto with the 
Commissioner of Transportation concerning the above-referenced grant. 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
    )  ss 
COUNTY OF ROSEAU      ) 
  
 
I, Jeff Pelowski, County Coordinator in and for Roseau County, Minnesota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a part of the proceedings adopted by the Roseau 
County Board of Commissioners on May 14, 2019. 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       Jeff Pelowski 

Roseau County Coordinator 
 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  Department Reports 1c 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Highway 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Pay Grade Revision(s) 

Presenter:  Brian Ketring 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☐< 5 minutes ☒ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Requesting the following Board Action, based upon the recent MRA review/rating determinations:  
 The Heavy Equipment Operator/Sprayer Operator be rated as a Grade 5 position when conducting Heavy 

Equipment Operator duties, and as a Grade 6 position when working as a Sprayer Operator; 
 The Heavy Equipment Operator/Crusher Operator be rated as a Grade 5 position when conducting Heavy 

Equipment Operator duties, and as a Grade 6 position when working as a Crusher Operator; 
 The Assistant Shop Mechanic/Maintenance Worker be rated as a Grade 6 position.  
 The proposed pay grade revisions become effective on May 19, 2019. 

 
 
The applicable background information was presented at the May 7, 2019 Board Work Session. 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☒ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 
 

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  Department Reports 1d 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Highway 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
County Engineer Contract 

Presenter:  Brian Ketring 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☐< 5 minutes ☒ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Consider renewal of the County Engineer’s Contract, (current Contract is attached). 

Background: 
As presented at the May 7, 2019 Board Work Session. The current 4-year Contract expires on May 31, 2019. 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☒ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 
 

 











Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  Department Reports 2a 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Pay Grade Revision 

Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☐< 5 minutes ☒ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Requesting Board approval, based upon the recent MRA review/rating determination, to rate the Benefits 
Administrator/Human Resources Representative position at a Grade 6; and, requesting an effective date of May 
19, 2019. 

Background: 
The relevant background information was presented at the May 7, 2019 Board Work Session. 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☒ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 
 

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

Agenda Item #:  County Board 1     
(for office use only)

Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
NW Regional Transportation Coordination Council 
Appointment 

Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Consider appointing Glenda Phillipe to the Council. 

Background: 
As previously discussed at the April 23, 2019 Board meeting, Ms.Phillipe has been attending Council meetings and 
has volunteered to continue to serve on the Council, but has not been officially appointed by the Board. 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☒ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

Agenda Item #:  County Board 2     
(for office use only)

Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Attorney 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
CR139 Culvert – “Findings and Order” Resolution 

Presenter:  Kristy Kjos 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Consider adoption of the attached Resolution. 

Background: 
The Board unanimously approved removing the culvert at their April 9, 2019 meeting. The attached Resolution is 
the documentation supporting that decision. 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☒ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 



 
Board of Commissioners 

606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 
Roseau, MN 56751 

Phone:  218-463-4248 
Fax:  218-463-3252 

 

District 1, John Horner - District 2, Jack Swanson, Chair 
District 3, Roger Falk, Vice-Chair - District 4, Russell Walker - District 5, Daryl Wicklund 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
 A motion was made by Commissioner XXXXX, seconded by Commissioner XXXXX, and carried 
unanimously to adopt the following Resolution: 
   
2019-05-02 
 

FINDINGS AND ORDER DIRECTING THE REMOVAL OF AN 18” DIAMETER CULVERT UNDER 
ROSEAU COUNTY ROAD (CR) 139 NEAR ITS JUNCTION WITH CR 10 (350TH STREET) 

 
WHEREAS, the Roseau County Board of Commissioners (the Board) is the Road Authority for CR 139 
and CR 10 under statutes chapters 160, 162 and 163; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board is also the Drainage Authority for State Ditch (SD) 69 under statutes chapter 103E; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, in its role as Road Authority, the Board possesses broad discretion to manage its road 
system for the benefit of the traveling public, including by the installation, alteration and removal of 
drainage and water management facilities associated with the road system; and 
 
WHEREAS, when exercising its discretion and statutory authority, the Board must have reasonable basis 
for its actions and account for any damages resulting from its activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, in its role as Drainage Authority for SD 69, the Board must ensure that actions taken related 
to the road system are consistent with the state drainage code; and 
 
WHEREAS, concerns have been raised related to the Board’s prior authorization of the installation of an 
18” culvert, at elevation 1027.3’ MSL, under CR 139 near its junction with CR 10; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the facts and circumstances of its prior authorization and has 
considered all factors influencing whether the culvert should remain. 
 
THEREFORE, based on the record before it, the Board makes and adopts the following findings and 
order: 

Findings 
 
1. The matter of a culvert under CR 139 near its junction with CR 10 first came to the Board on a 

petition request from the Roseau River Watershed District (RRWD) for the installation of a 36” culvert, 
in the same location, at elevation 1026’ MSL. 

 
2. The purpose of the RRWD’s request was to allow an equalization of waters in high water conditions 

between the subwatershed of Watershed Ditch (WD) 3, east of CR 139, for which the RRWD is the 
Drainage Authority, and SD 69, west of CR 139, for which the Board is the Drainage Authority. 

 
3. At the time of its request, the RRWD alleged that the equalization of waters was necessary because, 

in extreme run-off events, local roads, including CR 139, were at risk of overtopping and that there 
were existing, although limited, inter-watershed flows between WD 3 and SD 69. 

 
4. The Board’s Highway Engineer confirmed that CR 139 had overtopped in prior run-off events. 

 



5. With its request, the RRWD provided a 2008 hydraulic analysis of a 24” culvert at a similar location 
and elevation.  

 
6. In response to the RRWD’s request, the Board hired Houston Engineering to perform an analysis and 

to evaluate an alternative 18” culvert to be placed at the same location. Houston provided a report 
dated August 24, 2016. After determining that the culvert, as proposed by the RRWD, would cause 
substantial downstream damage, the engineering analysis demonstrated that an 18” culvert, placed 
at a slightly higher elevation (1027.3’ MSL), would achieve the desired equalization in most run-off 
events without endangering downstream properties and infrastructure within the SD 69 watershed.  

 
7. Based on Houston’s report, the Board’s Highway Engineer recommended denial of the RRWD’s 

request for a 36” culvert and approval of installation of an 18” culvert as described in the report. 
Further, the Highway Engineer recommended installation of the culvert as a safety improvement to 
prevent or protect against future overtopping of CR 139. 

 
8. On this basis, the Board approved installation of the culvert and the culvert was installed. However, 

the culvert was not installed by the RRWD but by the County as a safety improvement to CR 139. 
 

9. Subsequent to the installation of the culvert, landowners in the vicinity of the culvert (both east and 
west of CR 139) and Corps of Engineers expressed concerns over the installation. Landowners east 
of CR 139 expressed concerns that the culvert was not adequate to address their concerns over 
flooding in the WD 3 subwatershed. Landowners west of CR 139 expressed concerns over the 
possibility of damage to their properties because of additional water flowing west through the culvert 
into the SD 69 subwatershed. These same landowners expressed concerns over the capacity of SD 
69 to handle the additional water and questioned whether the action was necessary to protect CR 
139 and the traveling public given the infrequency of overtopping. The Corps of Engineers expressed 
concerns that the culvert was a modification of the Duxby Levy Project (which incorporates CR 10 
into a levy to retain waters from the Roseau River to the north). 

 
10. In response to the landowners’ damage concerns, the Board authorized Houston to perform 

additional analysis. The additional analysis further quantified the difference in downstream flows 
under both pre- and post-culvert conditions. Again, Houston’s analysis concluded that (1) existing 
drainage infrastructure, including SD 69, was sufficient to carry any additional flow of water; and (2) 
that there was no measurable damage resulting from the additional flow of water. Houston’s analysis 
did not investigate or address the frequency or likelihood of overtopping of CR 139. 

 
11. The Board determined that the culvert installation did not modify the Duxby Levy – having been built 

completely outside of the physical Project and not building upon, altering, improving, moving, 
obstructing or occupying the Project or any of the real property identified and acquired for the Project. 

 
12. The Board also considered and analyzed the installation of a riser pipe on the upstream end of the 

culvert to an elevation of 1029.9’ MSL.  
 

13. The Board further considered the culvert, the various engineering analysis, the concerns of the Corps 
of Engineers, and took landowner comments at its meeting on Tuesday, April 9, 2019. 

 
14. Of specific concern to the Board was whether the allegations of overtopping of CR 139 were 

documented and analyzed in order to determine the actual risk of overtopping and the safety impact 
to infrastructure and the traveling public. The Highway Engineer noted one documented incident of 
overtopping – in an extreme run-off event. The Highway Engineer further noted that a portion of CR 
139 was reconstructed after that incident and no similar overtopping has occurred since.  

 
15. Justification for the original installation of the culvert was to protect against future overtopping of CR 

139. However, evidence of the past frequency and future likelihood of overtopping of CR 139 is 
lacking. The Board finds, therefore, that the basis of its original decision to direct installation of the 
culvert was speculative or unfounded. The analysis supporting installation of the culvert was lacking, 
incomplete and of little value in supporting installation of the culvert for the purpose stated. Rather, 



the analysis was focused on impacts downstream of the culvert (because of the equalization of water) 
and not on the overtopping of CR 139. 

 
16. Though it did address the equalization of waters between the WD 3 and SD 69 subwatersheds, 

installation of the culvert created substantial concerns related to damages or other ill effects 
downstream of the culvert.  

 
17. The Board has weighed the evidence justifying the culvert and the health, safety and welfare 

concerns related to the culvert against complaints and concerns raised by adjacent landowners and 
finds that retaining the culvert cannot be justified. 

 
Based on the foregoing findings, the Board adopts the following: 
 

Order 
 
A. The existing culvert under CR 139 near its junction with CR 10 shall be removed and the conditions 

existing prior to its installation shall be restored. 
 
B. Nothing in this order shall prevent installation of a future culvert should future conditions or analysis, 

combined with policy considerations, support such an action. 
 

 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
    )  ss 
COUNTY OF ROSEAU      ) 
  
 
 
I, Jeff Pelowski, County Coordinator in and for Roseau County, Minnesota, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a part of the proceedings adopted by the Roseau County Board of 
Commissioners on May 14, 2019. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
       Jeff Pelowski 

Roseau County Coordinator 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:  County Board 3 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 14, 2019 Originating Department:  Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Commissioner Committee Reports 

Presenter:  Commissioners 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☒ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Commissioners will present their Committee Reports. 

Background: 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 
☐ Delegations/Board Appointments  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☒ County Board Items ☐ Other ______________________ 
 

 



JACK SWANSON COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
APRIL 24, 2019 - BUILDING COMMITTEE 
 
APRIL 24, 2019 - ROSEAU ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
APRIL 26, 2019 - CITY OF ROSEAU/ MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
TRAILS TASK FORCE; looked at ways to improve city trail system 
 
APRIL 29, 2019 - E.C.N. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CONFERENCE (ST 
CLOUD); presented on ways to engage elected leaders 
 
APRIL 30, 2019 - E.C.N. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CONFERENCE (ST 
CLOUD); represented NW Emergency Communications Board 
 
MAY 1, 2019 - COMMUNITY JUSTICE COORDINATING COMMITTEE 
 
MAY 2, 2019 - NORTHERN COUNTIES LAND USE COORDINATING BOARD 
(GRAND RAPIDS); discussion of Waters of the US  
 
MAY 6, 2019 - ROSEAU CITY COUNCIL 
 
MAY 7, 2019 - OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 
 
MAY 7, 2019 - COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE WORK SESSION 
 
MAY 8, 2019 - NORTHWEST EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS BOARD (THIEF 
RIVER FALLS); attendance rules 
 
MAY 8, 2019 - NACO COMMUNITY, ECONOMIC AND WORKFORCE 
DEVELOPMENT TELECONFERENCE 
 
MAY 9, 2019 - ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES FUTURES TASK 
FORCE (ST PAUL) 
 
MAY 10, 2019 - ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES FUTURES TASK 
FORCE (ST PAUL) 
 
 
 
 


	5-14-19 County Board Agenda
	Board Appointment 1 - RBA Roseau County Trailblazers Annual Review
	Board Appointment 1 - Attachment Grant-In-Aid Application

	Consent 1 - RBA April 23, 2019 Board Proceedings
	April 23, 2019 Proceedings

	Consent 2 - RBA Roseau County Trailblazers - 4th Benchmark
	Consent 2 - Attachment 4th Benchmark

	Department Reports 1a - RBA Heavy Equipment Operator Hire
	Department Reports 1b - RBA Bridge Bonding Grant Resolution
	Department Reports 1b - Attachment Resolution 2019-05-01

	Department Reports 1c - RBA Pay Grade Revision(s)
	Department Reports 1d - RBA County Engineer Contract
	Department Reports 1d - Attachment Engineer's Contract

	Department Reports 2a - RBA Pay Grade Revision
	County Board Item 1 - RBA NW Regional Transportation Coordination Council Appointment
	County Board Item 2 - RBA CR139 Culvert - "Findings and Order" Resolution
	County Board Item 2 - Attachment Resolution 2019-05-02

	County Board Item 3 - RBA Commissioner Committee Reports
	Commissioner Swanson Report


